
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2018 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes From the October 16, 2018 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 18354-18392.   
c. Approval of Personnel Committee Recommendations: 

i. Promote Administrative Assistant to Assistant City Administrator and Amend 
Compensation to Reflect Change. 

ii. Amend City Administrator/Planning Contract to Extend Through 2023. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. Richard and Kari Stromer (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following 
action for the properties located at 2828 County Line Road (PID No.18-118-24-24-0003) in 
Independence, MN: 

 

a. RESOLUTION 18-1105-01: Considering approval of a minor subdivision to 
allow a lot line rearrangement between the two existing parcels. 
 

8. John Sega (Applicant) and MN Horsepower LLC (Owner) request that the City consider 
the following actions for the property Located at 9255 County Road 6 (PID No. 31-118-
24-34-0001) in Independence, MN: 

 



 

a. RESOLUTION 18-1105-02: Considering approval of a minor subdivision to 
allow a rural view lot subdivision to divide the property; 
the northerly parcel consisting of ~10 acres, and the southerly parcel consisting of 
~72 acres. 
 

b. A conditional use permit allowing the following: 
i. A commercial riding stable. 

ii. An accessory building which is greater than 5,000 square feet. 
 

9. Consider Authorization to Purchase a New 2020 Tandem Axel Truck to Replace the 2007 
Tandem Axel Truck. 
 

10. Open/Misc. 
 
11. Adjourn. 



 

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., October 16, 2018 
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2018 –6:30 P.M. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3.  ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Grotting, Betts and McCoy  
ABSENT: City Attorney Vose 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, City Administrative Assistant Horner 
VISITORS: Richard and Kari Strom, Anita Volkenant, Marcia and Mike Kreklow, Leslie Peterson 
 
4.  ****Consent Agenda**** 
 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes From the October 2, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 18322-18353.  Check # 18320 was for Nelson 

Electric Motor that was re-issued and #18321 issued to Aaron Pouliot for escrow deposit 
repayment.  

c. Release of Road Easement Across the Properties Located at 6395 and 6351 County Road 11 and 
Approval to Establish New (Revised) Road Easement Across Same Properties. 

 
Motion by Grotting, second by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda items. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, 
Grotting, Betts and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC.  
 
6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

 Personnel Committee Meeting 
 Maple Plain Fire Department Steak Fry and Open House 
 Ron Jorgenson funeral 

 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 



 

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., October 16, 2018 
 

 LMCC build-out map meeting 
 Met with Kaltsas and Horner about taking over burn permits 

 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 

 Maple Plain Steak Fry and Open House 
 District 287 Emergency Management Training for Senior Staff 
 Maple Plain Fire Commission Meeting 

 
Betts attended the following meetings: 

 None 
 
Johnson attended the following meetings: 

 Orono School Board Meeting 
 Personnel Committee Meeting 
 Hennepin County Health Collaborative Meeting 
 Ron Jorgenson Funeral 
 Kare 11 interview about Highway 12 fatality 
 Orono Alumni Breakfast 
 Maple Plain Fire Department Steak Fry and Open House 
 Orono School Board Meeting 
 Maple Plain Fire Commission Meeting 
 Northwest League of Municipalities Meeting 
 Orono Healthy Youth Meeting 
 Loretto Fire Department Open House 

 
Horner attended the following meetings: 

 Maple Plain Fire Department Steak Fry and Open House 
 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 
 
7. Director Gary Kroells, West Hennepin Public Safety: 

 
a. Activity Report for the Months of August and September 2018. 

 
 For a full report see the City Council packet 

 
b. RESOLUTION 18-1016-01 considering approval of the Hennepin County All Hazard 

Mitigation Plan.   
 
Kroells stated over the past several years I have been working with Hennepin County Emergency 
Management to identify major hazards in the City of Independence. Hennepin County Emergency 
Management is pleased to present the 2018 Hennepin County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
The purpose of this plan is to identify the Counties major hazards, assess the vulnerability, and to reduce risk 
using a variety of data and best practice measures to implement mitigation projects. The plan identifies goals 
and recommended actions and initiatives for each jurisdiction within this county to reduce and/prevent injury 



 

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., October 16, 2018 
 

and damage from hazardous events. The intent of the Plan is to provide unified guidance for ensuring 
coordination of recovery-related hazard mitigation efforts following a major emergency/disaster, and to 
implement an on-going comprehensive county hazard mitigation strategy intended to reduce the impact of 
loss of life and property due to effects of natural hazards.  
 
Through continued collaboration with each jurisdiction by providing staff expertise, support, training and 
education opportunities, Hennepin County Emergency Management will continue to increase its resiliency to 
the effects of natural hazards. A resolution of approval is needed to accept the Hennepin County Emergency 
Management Hazard Mitigation plan. A copy of the plan has been included for your review. 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve RESOLUTION 18-1016-01 considering approval of the 
Hennepin County All Hazard Mitigation Plan. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Grotting, Betts and Spencer. 
Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 
c. ORDINANCE 2018-04 – Amending Chapter 13 Traffic Motor Vehicles and Other Vehicles, 

Section 1300.03. Parking, to clarify seasonal parking restrictions. 
 
Kroells said The City updated the ordinance in 2017 to include seasonal parking restrictions. Public Works 
and Public Safety would like to further clarify the seasonal parking restrictions to say that there shall be no 
parking permitted at any time between the specified hours on city streets from November 1 through April 15 
of each year and between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. In addition, the proposed amendment adds a 
provision that states following a snowfall event of 3 inches or more, no parking is permitted on city streets 
until they have been cleared. This clarifies the ordinance which, as previously adopted, allowed parking on 
city streets between 2:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. once the streets were cleared. 
 
Motion by Grotting, second by Spencer to approve ORDINANCE 2018-04 – Amending Chapter 13 
Traffic Motor Vehicles and Other Vehicles, Section 1300.03. Parking, to clarify seasonal parking 
restrictions. Also amend to make Roy Road the same hours. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Grotting, Betts 
and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
8. Discussion and Direction Relating to Changes to the Fee Schedule as follows: 

 
a. Consideration to Reduce the Sign Permit Fee for Farm Nameplate Signs and Temporary Signs. 

 
Kaltsas said The City requires a sign permit for all signs that are installed within the City with a few 
exceptions. The exceptions are as follows: 
 
Subd. 4. Exceptions. The exceptions permitted by this section apply only to the requirement of a permit 
and are not to be construed as excusing the installer of the sign or the owner of the property upon which 
the sign is located from conforming with the other provisions of this section. No permit is required under 
this section for the following: 
 
(a) Signs having an area of four square feet or less. 
(b) Signs erected by a governmental unit, public school or church. 
(c) Campaign signs listed in subsection 550.11, subdivision 5. 
(d) Memorial signs or tablets containing the name of the building, its use, and date of erection when 
cut or built into the walls of the building and constructed of bronze, brass, stone, marble or similar 
material. 
 



 

4 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., October 16, 2018 
 

The City permits one type of sign in the Agriculture zoning district relating to farmsteads as follows: 
 
Agricultural districts. One farm nameplate is permitted for each farm, provided that it may be no greater than 
12 square feet in area per surface and may have no more than two surfaces. 
 
The City has only one fee for permanent sign permits that is established annually with the adoption of the 
City’s fee schedule. The sign permit fee for permanent signs is currently $250.00. The City recently 
identified a potential issue with having only one fee for permanent sign permits. Earlier this year a resident of 
the City applied for a farm nameplate sign for their farmstead. The City noted that the sign was greater than 4 
square feet and would therefore require a sign permit per the ordinance. Because the City has only one fee, the 
resident was required to pay the $250 sign permit application fee. The City subsequently discussed amending 
the fee schedule to differentiate between farm signs and other permanent signs. Staff is recommending that the 
City establish a Farm Nameplate Sign Fee of $25.00 for all farm nameplate signs. It should be noted that 
nameplate signs in the Rural Residential zoning district cannot exceed 4 square feet and as such do not require 
a sign permit.  
 
The City has also reviewed the fee for temporary sign permits which is currently $100.00. It is recommended 
that the City also consider reducing the temporary sign permit fee from $100.00 to $25.00. It is anticipated 
that the establishment of a reasonable temporary sign permit fee will encourage more applications to be 
submitted to the City. The fee charged by the City is required to have a nexus associated with the cost the City 
incurs to review and issue the sign permit. Reviewing sign permits prior to installation of a sign ensures that 
requisite setbacks are met, signs are not located in areas that impede site visibility for driveways and 
intersections and that signs conform to all applicable size and height requirements. 
 
Based on the direction from the City Council relating to the aforementioned recommendations, the Fee 
Schedule would be updated in January 2019 as a part of the annual update as follows: 
 
SIGN PERMIT (#) 
Temporary (administrative) $ 100 $25 
Farm Nameplate Sign Permit $25 
Permanent Sign/Site Plan Review $ 250 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve changes to the Sign Permit Fee for Farm Nameplate 
Signs and Temporary Signs; also approve reimbursement to Klaers Century Farms. Ayes: Johnson, 
McCoy, Grotting, Betts and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 
9. Reschedule Regular City Council Meetings for Month of November Due to General Election. 

 
Kaltsas said the first November City Council Meeting falls on the same date as the General Election. The City 
will need to reschedule the Council Meeting. The second November City Council Meeting falls on the 
Tuesday of Thanksgiving week. Due to the upcoming agenda items and the Thanksgiving Holiday, the 
City is in a position to hold only one meeting in November. Staff is recommending that the City Council 
cancel both regularly scheduled meetings in November and hold one meeting. Based on a quick pole of 
the Council, the best alternative date is Monday, November 5th at 6:30 PM. 
 
Motion by McCoy, second by Grotting to cancel the November 6th and 20th Council meetings and 
reschedule to one meeting on November 5th. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Grotting, Betts and Spencer. 
Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 



 

5 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., October 16, 2018 
 

 
10. Open/Misc. 

 
11. Adjourn. 

 
Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting to adjourn at 7:21 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Grotting, Betts 
and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 
__________________________ 



 

City of Independence 
Independence, Minnesota 
September 18, 2018 
 

Compensation & Reclassification Study Report 



City of Independence 
1920 County Rd 90 
Independence, MN 55359 

Executive Summary 

Our firm was contracted by the City of Independence to provide a limited compensation and position reclassification study 
and analysis.  Specifically, the City wished to develop a job description and position classification for the newly developed 
Assistant City Administrator position as well as conduct a review of the current Public Works Director position description. 
In addition, the City sought a market compensation analysis for both of the aforementioned positions.   

We have developed the new Assistant City Administrator job description (Appendix A) and have based our analysis on the 
assumption that all position responsibilities and requirements are appropriately reflected, based on direction and input 
from City leadership. 

After later discussion with City leadership, it was decided that a formal position evaluation for the Public Works Director 
position was not necessary at this time and, as such, is not included in this analysis. 

To achieve the objectives set forth in our Scope of Work, we completed a scoring exercise using the Modified Princeton 
Job Evaluation System, the City’s current position classification methodology.  Using this model, the identified new 
position was given a score in the following categories; knowledge & experience, accountability, responsibility for planning, 
responsibility for the work of others, and variety of work..   

To complete the evaluation and scoring of the new Independence position, we reviewed the organizational structure, job 
descriptions, and requested additional information and clarification from City management, as needed.  Upon completing 
the position classification review, our firm also completed a market analysis to compare the City’s current wage scale for 
specific positions to the overall comparable public employee wage market in Minnesota. 

The market analysis consisted of analyzing salary data from comparable local governments in Minnesota, solicited through 
a survey conducted by AEM Workforce Solutions, and by reviewing current municipal salary data published by the League 
of Minnesota Cities through their annual salary survey. 

The results of both the position classification review and market compensation analysis follow. 

Methodology 

The last internal compensation and classification review was completed in 2015 by a consultant, Paul Ness.  At that time, 
the City elected to adopt the proposed position classification and step and grade plan prepared by Mr. Ness and the plan 
has been in place since 2015.   There have been annual cost of living adjustments (COLA) to maintain the marketability 
of the plan and the Public Works Director position was updated in 2017 to reflect several changes. 



As indicated, in the years following the last study (2015), there have been significant changes in job duties for a position 
within the administrative department.  As a result, the City of Independence leadership determined that an updated, 
independent, classification review and market compensation analysis were necessary to assist executive leadership in 
planning and budgeting for future growth, to better recruit and retain necessary talent, and to identify potential areas for 
improvement within this position. 

Scoring Analysis 

This section reflects the review and analysis of the six (6) job descriptions identified by City leadership for review and 
reclassification.  To complete this task AEM Workforce Solutions, LLC relied upon the accuracy of existing  job descriptions 
to complete our classification review.  The positions were scored using The Modified Princeton Job Evaluation System.  
The model assigned each position a score in the following categories: Knowledge & Experience, Accountability, 
Responsibility for Planning, Responsibility for the Work of Others, Variety of Work. 

Findings and Recommendations 

Position Points 

The following table represents the total score assigned to the new City position based on the Methodology discussed.  

Table 1 - Scoring Analysis 

The proposed position classification places the Assistant City Administrator on current compensation program 
Grade level 5. 

Market Analysis 

This section documents a sample of the wages provided to the employees of comparable local governmental units 
in Minnesota. The comparable government entities identified for this study were communities with populations from 
2,000 to 5,000 in the metro or central Minnesota areas.   

The City of Independence is within 20 miles of many large metro communities with populations over 25,000 and is 
competing for quality employees in the west-metro areas.  As such, the City should consider a competitive compensation 
scale to attract and retain qualified employees that have the knowledge, skills and abilities to provide service levels 
expected within the community.  These factors, coupled with the demand of specific technical and multi-faceted positions 
within the City, have resulted in the recommendations provided in this survey. 

The wages of the comparable positions for the municipalities listed in Table 2 were compared with those at the City of 
Independence.  It should be noted that the governments listed do not always have the exact type or number of positions 
as Independence and, in these cases, assumptions about duties and levels of responsibilities were made based on job 
description information and used to identify comparable positions. 

1 Assistant City Administrator C 2 60 C 1b 54 4 D 15 BC 1 6 n/a n/a 0 0 135 105 30 29%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

D
iff

er
en

ce

C
at

eg
or

y

Sc
or

e

Sc
or

e

Accountability 
for Action

Pr
io

r 
T

ot
al

D
iff

er
en

ce

Position

Responsibility 
for Planning

Variety of WorkKnowledge and 
Experience

Responsibility 
for Work of 

Sc
or

e

Sc
or

e

Sc
or

e

T
ot

al

C
at

eg
or

y

C
at

eg
or

y

C
at

eg
or

y

C
at

eg
or

y



Table 2 - Market Survey 

The Market Survey lists government agencies that were included in standard demographics for the market analysis. 

Carver 
Crosslake 
Excelsior 
Newport 
Olivia 
Park Rapids 
Wayzata 
Wabasha 
Arlington 
Becker 
Cokato 
Deephaven 
Lauderdale 
Mora 
Nisswa 
North Oaks 

Nowthen 
Sandstone 
Scandia 
Watertown 
Winsted 
Bayport 
Benson 
Breckenridge 
Carver 
Centerville 
Foley 
Gaylord 
Granite Falls 
Howard Lake 
Le Sueur 
Long Prairie 

Montrose 
Norwood Young America 
Oak Park Heights 
Osseo 
Perham 
Princeton 
Rockville 
Staples 
Elko New Market 
Madelia 
Moose Lake 
Pine City 
Hanover 
Lexington 
Pequot Lakes 

The market analysis has been adjusted to reflect comparable 2018 wages for the local governments analyzed.  

Table 3 - Market Analysis 

Overall, our market study found that the positions analyzed are, overall, competitive in relation to similar positions within 
comparable governmental entities.  While the starting wage level, in most cases, fell well below the market minimums, 
the City of Independence’s current compensation system allows for maximum pay rates at or well above the current 
market maximums. 

Admin/Office Manager 19.02$           39,563.49$                 (2.41)$  -11% 23.45$             48,778.71$            (9.94)$               -30%
Public Works Director 31.57$           65,658.89$                 1.08$  4% 39.06$             81,252.85$            (8.43)$               -18%
Assistant City Administrator 26.84$           55,820.96$                 4.25$  19% 34.49$             71,743.36$            (0.70)$               -2%

AVERAGE 0.97$  4% (6.35)$              -16%
2,020.85$                 (13,216.89)$    

Comp #1 - LMC Salary Survey

O
ve

r 
/ (

U
nd

er
) C

ity
 

C
ur

re
nt

 M
in

im
um

%

O
ve

r 
/ (

U
nd

er
) C

ity
 

C
ur

re
nt

 M
ax

im
um

%

M
ar

ke
t M

ax
 S

al
ar

y 
(2

01
8 

R
at

es
, e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

1/
1/

20
18

)

Po
si

tio
n 

T
itl

e

M
ar

ke
t M

in
 S

al
ar

y 
(2

01
8 

R
at

es
, e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

1/
1/

20
18

)



Implementation 

In light of our limited position classification and compensation study, our recommendation would be as follows: 

 Review and approve the draft Assistant City Administrator job description
 Review and approve the independent position classification for the new position

AEM Workforce Solutions, LLC would like to thank the City of Independence for the opportunity to prepare and present 
this limited Position Classification & Compensation Analysis.  We would especially like to thank the leadership team for 
their assistance in providing the necessary data to conduct the study. 



Appendix A 



JOB DESCRIPTION 
I.  IDENTIFYING INFORMATION 

POSITION TITLE: Assistant City Administrator DEPARTMENT: Administration WORK STATUS: Full-time 
 

SUPERVISOR: City Administrator 
LOCATION: City Hall  

WORK HOURS: Per Supervisor 

 

 

 

FLSA STATUS:  Non-exempt  
 

 
 
II.   ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS 

 
Reports to: City Administrator 

Works Closely with:  Accounting Clerk and Administrative Assistant  
Communicates with: 

Internally- 
Externally- 

Department managers, contracted planner, council & various board members, and all other city employees 
City residents and City Hall visitors 

              Supervises: None 
 
 
 

Ill.   DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 

This position is expected to initiate regular/routine work tasks and carry out work assignments with little or no direct 
supervision.  Work output is usually reviewed as drafts or in final form by the requesting manager or City Administrator.  The 
incumbent uses word/data processing skills and can provide creative input – through a variety of software used – on the 
design, layout, and presentation of content that is provided by the relevant department, and through use of existing 
documents, samples, or based on directed research.   
 
The incumbent does not have any formal budget or purchase authorities other than the ability to order regular office supplies.  
The incumbent does not have the authority to make independent decisions that impact City or individual department programs 
or services. 

 
IV.  PURPOSE 

 
Performs non-supervisory high-level administrative and support work to assist the City Administrator, department managers, 
city planners, and the City Council.  Supports other city boards and commissions.  Serves as the City’s primary customer 
service representative.  Successful performance is based on a smooth work flow, complete, timely, and accurate work 
product, ability to adapt to changing processes and priorities, and increased productivity achieved through the position’s non-
technical and technical support of elected and appointed officials. 
 

 
v. ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 

This section states the position's major areas of accountability, priorities/key responsibilities, and recurring duties. All are essential. 
The list of recurring duties is not exhaustive. All duties and tasks that can be logically inferred are not specified. 
Other accountabilities, responsibilities, as well as particular duties and tasks may be assigned. 
Major Areas of Accountability 

DAILY OPERATIONS 

ADMINISTRATIVE TASKS 

 
PLANNING & PROJECTS 

 
 

OUTSIDE COMMUNICATIONS/PUBLIC RELATIONS 
 

 
         COORDINATION WITH OTHER DEPARTMENTS 

Priorities/Key Responsibilities 
 

> Effective & accurate support of the City Administrator and City  
    Council functions 

 
> Planning/Budgeting/Recordkeeping/Reporting/ 
    Policies & Procedures 
 
> City Representation & Liaison/Intergovernmental 

Relations/Customer Relations/Public Relations 
 
> Shared Responsibilities/City-wide projects, events, activities 



V. ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

  ADMINISTRATIVE 

• Responsible for records management and data request responses according to MN Data Practice regulations and MN Records
Retention schedule.

• Administer preparation of the agenda and packet for board and committee meetings and prepare the meeting minutes,
including posting to website(s) once approved.

• Prepare and coordinate legal publications in compliance with state statutes and local ordinances.

• Direct license and permit issuance and prepare related reports for Council.
• Administer and supervise all elections according to State Statute, including: recruitment and training of judges, diagnostic

testing and coordination of maintenance, programming and operation of hardware, establishment of precincts, organization of 
polling places, management of absentee ballot process, maintenance of voter registration files, organization of supplies and 
supervision of election day procedures and activities.

• Manage regulatory functions of local elections, including: candidate filling, campaign financial reporting, certification of 
candidates, ballot questions and filing of election results with Hennepin County.

• Manage and/or coordinate special studies and projects as requested.
• Oversee specific programs for City departments, including: recycling, organics, and community activities.  Prepare related

grant reports and reimbursement requests.
• Assist in planning of City sponsored events, including room scheduling, setup, and clean up support.
• Oversee the preparation, production and maintenance of City communications including Newsletter, Website, and other

informational material.
• Research, assemble information and compose reports, memos and correspondence and review administrative documents for

clerical accuracy.
• Complete/collect and remit employee timesheets and payroll changes to third party payroll provider.
• Provide and facilitate exceptional customer service through caring, helpful, and professional contacts (in person, phone, e-mail,

and in writing).
• Research, design, implement and evaluate effective processes for communication including telephone and voice mail systems, 

e-mail, memos, bulletin boards, mail, web site, newsletters, etc.

   UTILITY BILLING AND ACCOUNTING 

• Prepare and distribute sewer/ utility billings and other month/ quarter billings as required
• Create and update customer account files and records.
• Review and verify billing edit reports for accuracy and make necessary changes.
• Post daily receipts.
• Prepare delinquent account data and apply delinquent penalties.
• Assist Accounting Department with payables, including distribution and filing

GENERAL

• Manage and coordinate ongoing office supply inventory and office equipment/facility general maintenance, include some occasional light
cleaning.

• Coordinate with other governmental agencies on strategic needs of the City to facilitate effective project management and identify fiscal
resources.

• Facilitate intergovernmental cooperation with neighboring communities and other government and non-profit partners, including shared
services and other cooperative ventures.

• Foster healthy working relationships between Council, staff, the public, and other community and consulting partners.
• Represents the City at public meetings or gatherings and presents a positive and professional image.
• Develops policies and procedures which ensure the most effective and efficient achievement of organizational objectives utilizing

management information and other available resources.
• Develop and recommend departmental policies and procedures for effective operation of the City and ensure council actions are

implemented.
• Performs other related duties as assigned or as apparent.



 
 
 
 

Ability to;
 

• relevant laws, rules and regulations 
• City and department policies and 

procedures 
• City's and Department's 

organizational structure and 
operations, projects and activities 

• each major area of accountability 
• process control and improvement 
• office procedures, business writing   

rules and techniques 
• relevant word processing, 

spreadsheet, presentation, and 
publishing software program 

• basic website management 

 
• communicating, both verbally 

and in writing, with clarity and 
understanding 

• preparing draft documents from 
author’s input, actual examples, and 
relevant samples 

• editing written material from draft to final 
form 

• maintaining and retrieving complete an 
and accurate computer and physical 
records 

• establishing and maintaining 
cooperative and productive 
relationships with a variety of 
individuals and groups 

• performing basic research and 
presenting results in an 
understandable/concise manner 

• processing numerical data with 
speed and accuracy 

• using information technologies to 
increase work productivity 

 
• continually improve personal 

knowledge base and keep current 
with best practices, new 
technologies, and industry trends 

• handle multiple, ongoing tasks, 
interruptions, and rapidly 
changing priorities 

• carry out orders and directives 
from supervisory personnel 

• follow policies and procedures with 
consistency and uniformity 

• interact with staff from various levels 
of local government and area 
organizations 

• handle confidential information 
with appropriate degree of 
discretion 

• initiate routine work duties and 
carry out tasks with little direct 
supervision 

• attend any employer or City 
related trainings and meetings 

 
 
 
 

Machines, tools, and equipment regularly used:   personal computer and peripherals, network hardware and accessories, typewriter, phone, 
other typical office equipment.



 
 
 
 
 

• High school diploma or equivalent. 
• Two years of post-secondary education and/or training in the administrative support job family 
• Specific experience (at least one year) of providing similar administrative duties in an municipal office setting 
• Notary public or ability to obtain licensure 

 
 
 
 
 

 
• Three or more years of experience performing Assistant City Administrator or Deputy Clerk functions within a municipal environment 
• Demonstrated skills with word processing, spreadsheet, and database applications 
• Demonstrated knowledge and experience working with elections and records management 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Works in typical office setting including sitting at desk for extended periods of time.  Works at computer (on keyboard and 
with mouse) majority of time using a number of repetitive movements and fine motor skills.  Uses near vision, ability to 
focus, sense of touch, and hearing.   
 
Physical demands also include walking, reaching, pulling/pushing, grasping, twisting/turning, and some kneeling.  Performs 
some lifting of files and office supplies. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

XI.  EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

I have reviewed a copy of the Assistant City Administrator job description and understand it covers the City's 
expectations for my work.  I also understand this document replaces any previous job description(s) and 
acknowledge management's  exclusive right to make any changes to it.  I agree this job description is a complete 
and accurate representation of the work I perform. 

 
 

Employee's Signature:   Date:   
 
 

XII.  NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT 
 

The City of Independence seeks to administer its employment practices in a manner that promotes fairness and 
is free of illegal discrimination.  No individual, within the context of their employment or application for employment  
with the City, shall be discriminated against or subjected to harassment on the basis of race, color, religion, 
national origin, sex, age, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, veteran status, public assistance status, or 
membership  on a local commission.   And, no individual who is protected by applicable Federal and State laws, 
rules, or regulations against discrimination shall otherwise be subjected to illegal discrimination. 

 
<<<For more information, please contact the City Administrator>>> 

 
 

XIII. REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION STATEMENT 
 

The City of Independence is committed to promoting equal opportunity for all of its employees and applicants 
for employment.  The City affirmatively acknowledges its obligation to comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Minnesota Human Rights Act (MHRA).  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
provide an accessible work place and offer other accommodations to qualified individuals.   Reasonable 
accommodation will be explored and determined on a case-by-case basis, generally after the individual 
concerned initiates a dialogue with the City's authorized representative. 

 
<<<For more information, please contact the City Administrator>>> 

 
 

XIV. EMPLOYMENT-AT-WILL & RIGHT-TO-REVISE DISCLAIMERS 
 

This job description is provided to you as the primary source of information and immediate reference for the 
City's expectations regarding your position.  This document is subject to unilateral change by the City at any 
time, without prior notification.   It is not a contract and does not alter the employment-at-will relationship the City 
maintains between its employees and itself.  Employment-at-will means an employee may resign from his/her 
position at any time, with or without cause.  The City has similar rights to terminate the employment relationship. 
This document replaces any existing job description(s). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHANGE HISTORY 
 

ADOPTED:   (Date) 
 

 
NEXT REVIEW:                          (Date) 

(Date) 

(Date) 

 

 
REVISED: 

 

(Date) 

(Date)  
(Date) 



2828 County Line Road Minor Subdivision– City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Minor Subdivision to Permit a Lot Line Rearrangement  
for the Property Located at 2828 County Line Road 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 
Meeting Date: November 5, 2018 

Applicant/Owner: Richard and Kari Stromer  

Location: 2828 County Line Road 
 

Request: 
Richard and Kari Stromer (Applicants/Owners) request that the City consider the following 
action for the property located at 2828 County Line Road, Independence, MN (PID No. 18-118-
24-24-0003): 
 

a. A minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement that would shift the north-south 
property line east to align with the existing creek. 
 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The subject properties are located south of Hwy. 12, west of Nelson Road and East of County 
Line Road.  There is an existing home and accessory buildings located on the west property.  The 
home is accessed via Maria Rd.  There is a creek that bisects the property from north to south.  
The property has upland pasture as well as a stand of mature trees.  The property has the 
following site characteristics:    
 

Property Information: 2828 County Line Road 
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage: (BEFORE) East Parcel - 9.48 acres   
             West Parcel - 9.98 acres   
 
 Acreage: (AFTER)    East Parcel 4.32 acres (Tract A) 
              West Parcel 16.02 acres (Tract B) 
  
 
  



2828 County Line Road Minor Subdivision– City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 2 

 

2828 County Line Road  

   
 
Discussion: 
The applicants approached the City about the possibility of subdividing their property into two 
lots in 2017.  At that time the applicant and the City believed that there was one property with a 
total of 19 acres.  The City considered and denied a variance to allow the subdivision of a 
property in the AG-Agriculture zoning district that was less than 40 acres.  
 
Since the City denied the application for a variance and minor subdivision in 2017, the applicant 
has further reviewed the title for the property.  The applicant has discovered that the property is 
actually comprised of two underlying and individual properties that were never formally 
combined by the City.  The previous owner of the property combined the property identification 
numbers for tax purposes at the County, but never formally combined the properties with the 
City.  The City’s attorney has reviewed the title evaluation prepared by the Applicants attorney 
and agrees with the findings.  As a result, the City recognizes the two individual properties.  
 
Within the AG-Agriculture zoning district, the subdivision of property is prohibited with the 
exception of lot line rearrangements and rural view lot subdivision.  The applicant is proposing 

PROPOSED LOT LINE REARRANGEMENT 

Maria Road Access to Existing House 



2828 County Line Road Minor Subdivision– City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 3 

 

to rearrange the lot line by moving the north-south property line to the east to align with the 
centerline of the existing creek.    The west property has an existing home and accessory 
structures that are accessed via Maria Rd. to the west.  The proposed new property would have 
the following detail: 
 

Min. Lot Size:     2.5 Acres (Buildable Upland) 
Proposed Lot Size:    4.32 Acres  

 
Min. Lot Frontage Required:   250 Lineal Feet 
Lot Frontage Proposed:   440 Lineal Feet 

 
Min. Upland Acreage Required:  2.5 Acres 
Upland Acreage Proposed:   2.76 Acres 

 
The remainder property with the existing home and accessory structures would not be negatively 
impacted as a result of the proposed subdivision.  The proposed new parcel would not create any non-
conformities or reduced setbacks relating to the remainder property, the existing home or accessory 
buildings.  There are several additional considerations that should be noted by the City when considering 
this request: 
 

a. The east property will be accessed via Nelson Road.   
 

b. The Applicant had previously completed the requisite report verifying that both properties 
can accommodate a primary and secondary on-site septic system.  The locations of the 
sites are shown on the attached survey. 

 
c. The proposed lot line rearrangement would create two properties that meet all other 

applicable criteria of the City’s zoning ordinance.   
 

d. The Applicant has prepared the requisite 10-foot drainage and utility easements around the 
perimeter of both properties. 

 
  Due to their historically being two separate (2) parcels, no park dedication will be required.   
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The City has not received any comments prior to or at the public hearing. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 
Planning Commissioners reviewed the request and asked questions of staff and the petitioner.  
Commissioners asked if the property had historically paid tax on two parcels or if the County had 
combined the properties in their system.  It was noted that the property has been historically taxed as 



2828 County Line Road Minor Subdivision– City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 4 

 

two parcels.  Commissioners asked if this condition could exist on other parcels in the City.  It was 
noted that it could exist on other parcels.  Commissioners found that the standards for permitting a lot 
line rearrangement had been met by the applicant and recommended approval to the City Council with 
the following findings and conditions: 
 
 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the requested variance and minor subdivision with 
the following findings and conditions: 
 

 The proposed minor subdivision request meets all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Subdivisions, in the City of 
Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 The Applicant shall provide, execute and record the requisite drainage and utility 

easement with the county within six (6) months of approval.  
 

 The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 
subdivision. 

 
 The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the 

county within six (6) months of approval.  
 

 
Attachments:  

 Application/Narrative 
 Applicants Attorney Title Evaluation Letter  
 Existing and Proposed Survey  
 RESOLUTION No. 18-1105-01 

 
 

 

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-1105-01 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MINOR SUBDIVISION  
TO ALLOW A LOT LINE REARRANGEMENT 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2828 COUNTY LINE ROAD  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a Comprehensive Plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance and other official 
controls to assist in implementing the Comprehensive Plan; and  

WHEREAS, Richard and Kari Stromer (the “Applicants/Owners”) have submitted a 
request for a minor subdivision for the property located at 2828 County Line Road (PID No. 18-
118-24-24-0003); and  

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and  

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned AG-Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS the requested minor subdivision meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence subdivision and zoning ordinance for Agriculture 
Property; and 

WHEREAS the City held a public hearing on October 16, 2018 to review the application 
for a variance and minor subdivision, following mailed and published noticed as required by law; 
and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
Richard and Kari Stromer for a minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement per the City’s 
subdivision and zoning regulations with the following conditions: 

 



1. The proposed minor subdivision request meets all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Subdivisions, in the City of 
Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The Applicant shall provide the City with descriptions of the drainage and utility 

easements and execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easements with 
the county within six (6) months of approval.  

 
3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the 

requested minor subdivision. 
 

4. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the 
county within six (6) months of approval.  

 
This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 

5th day of November, 2018, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 
         
 
 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

 





















MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Minor Subdivision to Permit a Rural View Lot and a Conditional Use 
Permit to Allow a Commercial Riding Stable on the  

Property located 9255 County Road 6 
 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: November 5, 2018 

Applicant: MN Horsepower, LLC 

Property Owner: MN Horsepower, LLC 

Location: 9255 County Road 6 

 

Request: 
MN Horsepower LLC (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following actions for the 
property located at 9255 County Road 6 (PID No. 31-118-24-34-0001) in Independence, MN: 
.   

a. A minor subdivision to allow a rural view lot subdivision to divide the property; the northerly 
parcel consisting of ~10 acres, and the southerly parcel consisting of ~72 acres. 
 

b. A conditional use permit allowing the following: 
i. A commercial riding stable. 
ii. A detached accessory building which is greater than 5,000 square feet.    

 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the south side of CSAH 6 near the intersection of CSAH 6 and CSAH 157.  The 
property is comprised of an existing home, barn and several additional detached accessory structures.  The 
property has pasture areas, paddocks and is heavily wooded.  The property has the following 
characteristics: 
 

Property Information: 9255 County Road 6 
Zoning: Agriculture 

 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage: 82.53 acres 
 
  
 



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 2 

 

9255 County Road 6 

 
 
 
Discussion: 
The Applicant approached the City about purchasing the subject property and converting the private horse 
facilities into a commercial riding stable.  In addition, the Applicant would like to subdivide the portion of the 
property that is separated by and lies north of CSAH 6 using the rural view lot subdivision provisions.  The 
existing property has a home, existing barn/indoor riding arena and several additional detached accessory 
structures.  The property has a conditional use permit which allows a non-rental guest apartment.  The 
Applicant currently operates a commercial horse facility on a property in Minnetrista and has been looking 
for a permanent home in this area.  The Applicant will be living on the property.  The Applicant is asking the 
City to consider granting a conditional use permit for a commercial riding stable that would allow the 
boarding of up to 50 horses on the property along with the construction of a new indoor riding arena that 
would be larger than 5,000 sf.  Both requests require a conditional use permit from the City. 
 
 
 
 



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 3 

 

The proposed commercial boarding stable would have the additional following characteristics: 
 
NOTE:  Applicants narrative attached to this report may have several discrepancies from the report.  The 
information in this report is the most current information and should be considered. 
 

1. The existing horse barn is two stories and has eight stalls, storage space and a tack room. 
2. The proposed indoor riding arena would be 24,750 sf and would have 30 additional stalls.  
3. There is an existing 2-bedroom non-rental guest quarters attached to the existing home.  The 

Applicant is proposing to continue using the conditional use permit for the guest quarters and 
would likely have 1-2 full time employees housed on the property.   

4. The applicant is proposing to have a maximum of 50 horses boarded on the property at any time. 
5. Access to the property for the boarders would be permitted only between the hours of 7:00 am and 

10:00 pm daily.   
6. The Applicant would have regular deliveries of shavings which typically come via a single-axel 

truck weekly or less. 
7. The Applicant would have a Ferrier come to the site to shoe the horses on a regular basis.  This 

would likely result in weekly visits.  The horses are shoed every 5 weeks.  
8. There would be regular weekly garbage service to the property. 
9. Manure is proposed to be composted on-site using a three-bin system (additional information 

provided by the applicant and attached to this report).  The applicant would like to use the compost 
on the property.  The applicant has shown the location of the compost bin area on the site plan.  
The City would require soil testing prior to land application of any manure/compost on site. 

10. Hay would be delivered to the property.  This is usually done 5-10 times during the summer and a 
few times during other parts of the year as needed.  Generally, there would be approximately 12 
days a year that hay is delivered to the property. 

11. The Applicant would typically have between 5 and 15 guests coming to the property during the 
week with up to 20-25 guests coming on weekends.  During the summer months there would be 
more activity during the daytime hours.  During the school year there would be more activity 
occurring after school or in the evenings. 

12. The Applicant is proposing to have between 4 and 8 clinics per year with no greater than 50 
attendees.  The clinics would be held during the regular hours of operation. 

13.  The Applicant has prepared a site plan that shows the location of the existing and proposed 
buildings.  The Applicant is proposing to initially construct the indoor riding arena.  The plans 
indicate the future location of an automated walker building and hay barn.  The City is being asked 
to consider approval of the complete site plan and build out. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 4 

 

 
 
 
Commercial riding stables are a conditional use in the Agriculture zoning district.  The subject property is 
zoned Agriculture.  The City generally allows 1 animal unit on the first two acres and then 1 additional 
animal unit for each additional acre of property.  The subject property is comprised of approximately 82 
acres in the before condition.  Should the City approve the rural view lot subdivision, the remainder property 
will have approximately 72 acres.   Most, if not all of the 72 acres is useable upland.  There are a few small 
possible wetlands located on the property.    Applying the City’s typical standard, the site would 
accommodate 71 animals using the gross acreage.  The City has historically required that the applicants 

Proposed Walker Ring   

Proposed Indoor Riding Arena  

Proposed Hay Barn   

Proposed Hay Barn   



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 5 

 

maintain a manure management plan, maintain all applicable permits relating to the management of 
manure on the property and maintain 1/3 acre of open pasture per animal unit.  This property is heavily 
wooded and has approximately 18 acres of open pasture without the removal of existing woodlands.  The 
open pasture areas on this property in the existing condition (minor tree removal would need to occur on 
the western portion of the property) would accommodate 50 horses using the City’s standard of 1/3 acre 
per horse (50 horses/1/3 acre per horse = 16.7 acres of open pasture). 
 
 
 

 
 
The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
(Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 
 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 
occupants of surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 
in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly 

Existing 

Pasture Areas  



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 6 

 

development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated 
traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 
5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 

treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to 
protect the city form pollution hazards. 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 
topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and 
environmental features. 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of 
Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 
 
The City has visited the site and discussed the operation of the proposed commercial riding stable with the 
applicant.  The following considerations should be noted by the City: 
 

 This property has a geographic and topographical advantage that not all properties have 
as it relates to a commercial riding stable.  The existing home, existing barn and proposed 
new indoor riding arena would be predominantly screened from CSAH 6 as well as the 
surrounding properties.  The location on CSAH 6 aids the proposed use in that it would not 
negatively increase traffic on CSAH 6 due to the high traffic volume. 
 

 The proposed use as a commercial riding stable generally fits into the character of the 
surrounding area and is in keeping with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 
 The applicant has prepared a grading, drainage and storm water plan for the proposed site 

improvements.  The existing home and accessory buildings generally sit at the highest 
point on the site and the topography slopes away in all directions.  The City is in the 
process of reviewing the grading, drainage and storm water plan.  Any comments resulting 
from the plan review will need to be addressed by the applicant and will be subject to the 
approval of the City Council.  The City’s approval of this project will also be subject to the 
Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commissions approval of the proposed site 
improvements. 

 
 The City discussed lighting with the applicant.  The applicant is aware that all proposed 

lighting will be full cut-off type lighting.  The City will work with the applicant to obtain the 
cut sheets and detailed plan for the proposed lighting.  All building lighting will need to 
comply with the City’s lighting standards.  The outdoor riding arena could be artificially 
illuminated but would need to comply with applicable site lighting requirements.  The City 
typically reviews building and site lighting during the building permit review process.  

 



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 7 

 

 Delano Fire Department has reviewed the proposed site plan.  The Fire Department has 
asked for a minor modification to the driveway access.  Any changes and or modifications 
resulting from the Fire Department review will need to be fully addressed by the Applicant. 

 
 It was brought to the City’s attention that there may be a discrepancy with the legal 

description of the property.  The City has been working with the applicant to determine if 
the legal description and depiction of the property on the north side of CSAH 6 is accurate.  
The area in question is highlighted below.  If the area in question is in fact a part of the 
adjacent property to the east, the applicant would not have access to the property from 
Nelson Road.  This would not impact the subdivision, but would then require any access to 
the property to be from CSAH 6.  

 

 
 

 The Applicant has provided the City with additional information relating to the replacement 
and upgrade of the on-site septic system.  The City is working with the Applicant on the 
septic upgrade/replacement. 

 
 The City has prepared a draft of a manure management policy that provides general 

guidelines and standards that can be used for this project and all future commercial riding 
stables.  The draft policy is attached and is not being presented for formal approval.  
Should the Council recommend that the City adopt a policy, then the condition for approval 
of this project would reference the adopted policy.  Should the Council not recommend the 
policy, then the City would want to include the historically used conditions pertaining to 
manure management.   

 
Given the location of the property off of CSAH 6, the orientation of the buildings and their relationship to the 
surrounding properties and the existing use of the property as a private horse facility, it appears that the 
proposed application can be found to meet the requirements for granting a conditional use permit to allow a 
commercial riding stable. 
 
 



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 8 

 

Minor Subdivision to Allow a Rural View Lot 
 
In addition to the conditional use permit, the applicant is requesting a minor subdivision to permit a rural 
view lot.  The property is currently bisected by CSAH 6.  The portion of the property located north of CSAH 
6 is approximately 10.21 acres.  The acreage is measured to the Center of the road and includes the road 
right of way for CSAH 6.  
 
The City’s zoning ordinance allows Agriculture property to realize one rural view lot for every 40 acres of 
property.  The 82-acre parcel could realize two rural view lot subdivisions. 
 
The proposed subdivision would create a new 10-acre lot that would allow for a new home to be 
constructed on the property and meet all applicable building setbacks.  The Applicant is working with the 
City relating to the location of the primary and secondary septic sites for the north property.  The newly 
created lot does not have any non-buildable property.  The City has criteria relating to rural view lot 
subdivisions.  The proposed lot meets the criteria as follows: 
 
Proposed/Required Lot Conditions for Parcel B 

Required Minimum Lot Size (maximum size is 10 acres):  2.5 acres (buildable upland) 
Proposed Lot Size:     10.21 acres (~20,000 of right of way) 

 
Required Lot Frontage:  300 lineal feet 
Proposed Lot Frontage:  1,233 lineal feet (779 lf CSAH 6, 454 lf Nelson Road) 

   
Ratio of lot frontage to lot depth required - no more than 1:4 
Ratio of lot frontage to lot depth proposed – Parcel B - ~1:1.15 (778:900) 

 
The applicant will be required to provide the requisite drainage and utility easements for Parcel 2 (Section 
500.15, Subd.’s 1 and 2).  Parcel 1 will likely be further subdivided in the future and at that time the City will 
capture the necessary drainage and utility easements. 

 
The remaining Parcel 1 could potentially realize one (1) additional rural view lot.  The City has submitted 
the proposed subdivision to Hennepin County for review.  Access to the property will be from Nelson Road.  
There does not appear to be any adverse effects on the surrounding or subject properties in the after 
condition as a result of this minor subdivision to permit a rural view lot.  The proposed lot fits into the 
character of the surrounding area and is in keeping with the general characteristics of the properties on 
Nelson Road. 
 
The newly created Parcel 2 will be required to pay the City’s requisite Park Dedication fee.  For this 
property the requirement is $7,250 ($3,500 + $3,750).  This fee will need to be paid prior to recording the 
subdivision.    
 

Park dedication fee of $3,500 per lot up to 4.99 acres, 
plus $750 per acre for each acre over 5 acres 



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 9 

 

Neighbor Comments: 
The City received comments from the adjacent property owner on the northeast corner of Nelson Road and 
CSAH 6.  The owner of the property believes that there is a triangular shaped portion of the property that is 
connected to their property.  The City is working on resolution to this issue.   
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 
Commissioners discussed the proposed CUP and minor subdivision.  Commissioners asked if Hennepin 
County had any concerns relating to the access to the existing farm.  It was noted that no new access 
points were being requested.  Commissioners asked about the grazeable pasture acreage and how the 
City would administer this requirement.  It was noted that the City does complete a bi-annual review of all 
CUP’s and would look at the conditions of the pasture at that time.  Commissioners clarified whether or not 
there was a requirement for the property to be owner occupied.  It was noted that this is not a requirement 
for a commercial riding stable CUP.  Ultimately, Commissioners’ found the requested actions to meet the 
criteria for granting approval and recommended approval to the City Council with the findings and 
conditions stated in the resolution. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request for a conditional use permit and minor 
subdivision with the following findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed conditional use permit and minor subdivision requests meet all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Subdivisions and Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the 
City of Independence Ordinances. 
 

2. The conditional use permit will include the following conditions:  
 

a. The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure conformance with the 
conditions set forth in the resolution. 
 

b. Any new signage shall comply with all applicable standards of the City’s ordinance and require a 
sign permit. 

 
c. No more than 50 horses shall be boarded on the property. 

 
d. The applicant and facility must operate in compliance with manure management permit from MPCA.  

A copy of the valid MPCA permit is to be attached to and become a part of the conditional use 
permit.   

 
e. A minimum of 1/3 acre or green covered open space, excluding wetland, is required within the horse 

facility, for each horse allowed by this permit.   Grass shall be maintained and be the primary 



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 10 

 

groundcover in all pasture areas.   
 

f. The applicant shall be required to test the soil in the existing pasture areas prior to land application 
of the manure.  If the soil has a high in-situ phosphorous concentration which exceeds the 
phosphorous uptake from the vegetation, the applicant would not be permitted to land apply the 
manure until such time as the phosphorus levels decrease.  The number and location of the soil 
samples will be determined by the City.   

 
g. The applicant shall manage the pasture areas by rotating their use during the growing months.  A 

minimum of 70 percent vegetative cover shall be maintained on the pasture areas during the 
growing season. 

 
h. The hours of operation are: summer 7:00 am – 10:00 pm. 

 
i. Eight (8), one day, horse training clinics will be permitted per year and shall comply with the 

following provisions: 
 

 The horse clinics shall occur during the permitted hours of operation.   
 No more than 50 participants shall be permitted at each clinic.  

  
j. No renting of hack horses shall be permitted. 

 
k. No riding on adjacent private land unless authorized by owners. 

 
l. No parking or standing of vehicles on County Road 6 shall be permitted at any time. 

 
m. Utilize appropriate management practices to control flies and odor. 

 
n. No future expansion of the barn and riding arena shall be permitted on the property without the 

further review and approval by the City through the conditional use permit amendment process.  
 

3. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review and recording of the resolution for a 
minor subdivision and conditional use permit. 
 

4. City Council approval of the conditional use permit and rural view lot subdivision is subject to the 
following: 

 
a. The applicant shall verify the survey information and make a determination relating to the ownership 

of the portion of the north parcel in questions.  Based on the findings, the survey and legal 
descriptions will need to be updated and submitted to the City. 
 

b. The applicant shall obtain all requisite approvals from the Pioneer Sarah Watershed Management 
Commission for the proposed site work and disturbance. 
 



MN Horsepower, LLC CUP Request – City Council 11.5.2018  
 Page 11 

 

c. The applicant shall provide all requisite information and or revisions to the proposed grading and 
drainage plans in accordance with the review by the City’s water resource consultant.  

 
d. The applicant shall provide all requisite information and or revisions to the proposed plans based on 

the Fire Department review.   
 

e. The applicant shall provide all requisite information and or revisions to the proposed plans based on 
Hennepin County review of the proposed subdivision.   

 
f. The applicant shall provide the City with information and details pertaining to any and all building 

and site lighting.  All lighting will be required to comply with the City’s applicable lighting standards. 
 

g. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in the amount of $7,250 for the newly created 
Parcel 2, prior to the City recording the subdivision. 

 
h. The Applicant shall execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easements with the county 

within six (6) months of approval.  
 

5. The remaining Parcel 1 will have one (1) remaining rural view lot eligibility. 
 
6. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county within six (6) 

months of approval.  
 

 
 

Attachments: 
1. Application 
2. Applicants Narrative  
3. Site Plan/Survey 
4. Draft Manure Management Policy 
5. RESOLUTION No. 18-1105-02 
 

 
 

 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-1105-02 

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND 

MINOR SUBDIVISION AS REQUESTED BY MN HORSEPOWER, LLC FOR THE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9255 CSAH 6  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, MN Horsepower, LLC, (the “Applicant”) submitted a request for a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a Commercial Riding Stable, an Accessory Structure larger than 
5,00 square feet and a minor subdivision to permit a rural view lot on the property located 9255 
CSAH 6 and Identified by (PID No. 31-118-24-34-0001) (the “Property”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned AG-Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS the requested Conditional Use Permit and Minor Subdivision meet all 
requirements, standards and specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for 
Agriculture lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 16, 2018 to 
review the application for the Conditional Use Permit and Minor Subdivision, following mailed 
and published noticed as required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 



 

MN Horsepower, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Commercial Riding Stable and 
Accessory Structure larger than 5,000 square feet and a Minor Subdivision to permit a rural view 
lot per the City’s zoning regulations with the following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed conditional use permit and minor subdivision requests meet all applicable 

conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Subdivisions and Chapter V, 
Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Ordinances. 
 

2. The conditional use permit will include the following conditions:  
 

a. The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure 
conformance with the conditions set forth in the resolution. 
 

b. Any new signage shall comply with all applicable standards of the City’s ordinance 
and require a sign permit. 

 
c. No more than 50 horses shall be boarded on the property. 

 
d. The applicant and facility must operate in compliance with manure management 

permit from MPCA.  A copy of the valid MPCA permit is to be attached to and 
become a part of the conditional use permit.   

 
OPTION 1 (if policy is included) 

e. The applicant shall be required to submit a manure management plan to the City in 
accordance with the adopted Manure Management Policy.  The applicant shall be 
required to operate the commercial riding stable in compliance with the approved 
manure management plan. 
 

OPTION 2 (if policy not included) 

f. A minimum of 1/3 acre or green covered open space, excluding wetland, is required 
within the horse facility, for each horse allowed by this permit.   Grass shall be 
maintained and be the primary groundcover in all pasture areas.   

 
g. The applicant shall be required to test the soil in the existing pasture areas prior to 

land application of the manure.  If the soil has a high in-situ phosphorous 
concentration which exceeds the phosphorous uptake from the vegetation, the 
applicant would not be permitted to land apply the manure until such time as the 
phosphorus levels decrease.  The number and location of the soil samples will be 
determined by the City.   

 
h. The applicant shall manage the pasture areas by rotating their use during the 

growing months.  A minimum of 70 percent vegetative cover shall be maintained on 
the pasture areas during the growing season. 

 
i. The hours of operation are: summer 7:00 am – 10:00 pm. 

 



 

j. Eight (8), one day, horse training clinics will be permitted per year and shall comply 
with the following provisions: 

 
 The horse clinics shall occur during the permitted hours of operation.   
 No more than 50 participants shall be permitted at each clinic.  

  
k. No renting of hack horses shall be permitted. 

 
l. No riding on adjacent private land unless authorized by owners. 

 
m. No parking or standing of vehicles on County Road 6 shall be permitted at any time. 

 
n. Utilize appropriate management practices to control flies and odor. 

 
o. No future expansion of the barn and riding arena shall be permitted on the property 

without the further review and approval by the City through the conditional use 
permit amendment process.  

 
3. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review and recording of the 

resolution for a minor subdivision and conditional use permit. 
 

4. City Council approval of the conditional use permit and rural view lot subdivision is 
subject to the following: 

 
a. The applicant shall verify the survey information and make a determination relating 

to the ownership of the portion of the north parcel in questions.  Based on the 
findings, the survey and legal descriptions will need to be updated and submitted to 
the City. 
 

b. The applicant shall obtain all requisite approvals from the Pioneer Sarah Watershed 
Management Commission for the proposed site work and disturbance. 
 

c. The applicant shall provide all requisite information and or revisions to the proposed 
grading and drainage plans in accordance with the review by the City’s water 
resource consultant.  

 
d. The applicant shall provide all requisite information and or revisions to the proposed 

plans based on the Fire Department review.   
 

e. The applicant shall provide all requisite information and or revisions to the proposed 
plans based on Hennepin County review of the proposed subdivision.   

 
f. The applicant shall provide the City with information and details pertaining to any 

and all building and site lighting.  All lighting will be required to comply with the 
City’s applicable lighting standards. 

 



 

g. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in the amount of $7,250 for the 
newly created Parcel 2, prior to the City recording the subdivision. 

 
h. The Applicant shall execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easements 

with the county within six (6) months of approval.  
 

5. The remaining Parcel 1 will have one (1) remaining rural view lot eligibility. 
 
6. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county 

within six (6) months of approval.  
 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
5th day of November 2018, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

         

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 

(Site Plan) 

 





















knelson
Arrow

knelson
Arrow

knelson
Arrow

knelson
Arrow

knelson
Arrow

knelson
Arrow

knelson
Text Box
SWALE

knelson
Text Box
SWALE

knelson
Text Box
SWALE

knelson
PolyLine

knelson
Text Box
PROPOSED BIO ROLLS

knelson
Arrow

knelson
PolyLine

knelson
PolyLine

knelson
Arrow

knelson
Arrow

knelson
Text Box
PROPOSED SILT FENCE

knelson
Text Box

knelson
Text Box
1NOV18             SILT FENCE, SWALES           KDN



 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
http://independence.govoffice.com 

 

DRAFT 
City of Independence  

Manure Management Policy 
 
 
1. Determination of Need and Introduction 
 
The City of Independence has determined that it is in the best interest of the residents for the City 
that all commercial riding stables prepare and maintain and manure management plan.  The plan 
will provide detailed information pertaining to the management of manure generated from the 
commercial riding stable. 
 
2. Manure Management Best Practices 
 
The City has developed the following best management practices that shall be used in the 
preparation of the manure management plan: 
 

A. Animal unit density should be based on the buildable, upland acres of a property.  
Existing and proposed building areas, parking areas as well as wetlands, steep slopes and 
other natural impediments should be subtracted from the total acreage. 
 

B. Each animal unit shall have 1/3 of an acre of grazable pasture.  If the grazable pasture 
area restricts the number of animal units, the lesser number should be used to determine 
the maximum number of animal units permitted. 
 

a. The applicant shall manage the pasture areas by rotating their use during the 
growing months.  A minimum of 70 percent vegetative cover shall be maintained 
on the pasture areas during the growing season.  The City shall determine the 70% 
coverage by using a dimensional transect method. 

 
C. Manure management shall be addressed using one of the following methods: 

 
a. Contain manure on-site and remove manure from the property by taking off-site. 

 
b. Contain manure on-site and compost by using an approved compost system. 

 
c. Contain manure on-site and land apply manure. 

 
D. Land application of manure shall consider the following best practices: 

 
a. Time of year – manure shall not be land applied to frozen ground. 

 



 

2 
 
 

b. Setbacks from wetlands, steep slopes, drainage ditches/creeks/other water 
resources – a minimum of a twenty-five (25) foot setback shall be maintained for 
all land applications. 

 
c. Shoreland Overlay – no land application of manure shall be permitted in the 

shoreland overlay zoning district. 
 

d. Manure Containment - detailed plans for the manure containment area, including 
the type of surface and or structure to be used for manure storage.  Manure 
containment areas shall be impervious and located in an area which avoids direct 
run-off into wetlands, drainage swales and other similar water resource areas. 

 
e. Soil Testing – the City will review the plan and may require that prior to land 

application of manure, the soil will be tested to determine the existing level of 
nutrients.  The City will review the site and determine the best locations for 
testing.  Test samples should be taken at a rate of three samples for each twenty 
acres.   Based on the University of Minnesota recommended maximum nutrient 
levels for in-situ phosphorous concentration, (the phosphorous uptake from the 
vegetation) the applicant may not be permitted to land apply the manure until 
such time as the phosphorus levels decrease.   

 
3. Plan Requirements 
 
The manure management plan shall address and provide information relating to the following: 
 

A. Site Plan – Provide a scaled site plan indicating the location of the manure containment 
area, existing natural resources (wetlands, drainage swales, wooded areas, etc.), two-foot 
contours, pasture areas, and existing and proposed structures. 
 

B. Manure Containment - Detailed plans for the manure containment area, including the 
type of surface and or structure to be used for manure storage. 
 

C. Buffer Areas – Indicate on the plan the twenty-five-foot buffer setback from wetlands 
and drainage swales. 
 
 

 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

2020 Tandem Axel Truck Purchase 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: November 5, 2018 

 
Discussion: 
The City has scheduled the replacement of the existing 2007 tandem axel truck for 2020 (see attached PW 
capital improvement plan).  In order for the City to place a new truck in service early in 2020, the truck will 
need to be ordered and constructed approximately one (1) year prior to the anticipated delivery.  The City 
has determined that it can lock in pricing by placing the order for the entire truck cab, chassis and box build 
out in 2018, take delivery of the truck cab and chassis in 2019 and then send the truck to have the full build 
out and box completed by early 2020.  The City has spent considerable time talking to other public works 
departments, sales representatives, and driving test trucks to determine the best replacement option for 
Independence.  

  
Public Works would like to order a 2020 Mack truck and chassis.  The box and full truck build out would be 
completed by Towmaster, Inc. (Litchfield, MN) who has built out the City’s existing fleet.  The truck is part of 
the state bid and does not require any further bid process.  The new truck costs are as follows: 

 
 2020 Mack GR64F Tandem Axel Truck:  $122,661.00 
 Trade In Allowance for 2007 Freightliner:  -$20,000.00 
 Taxes/Fees:     $6,747.97 
 Box and Remaining Build Out:   $127,900.00 

TOTAL COST: $237,408.97 
 

The City would pay for the Truck upon delivery in the 3rd Qtr. of 2019 using the existing capital 
improvement funds ($109,408.07). The City would pay for the remaining box and build out upon delivery in 
the 1st Qtr. of 2020 using a combination of existing capital funds ($68,266.03) and additional funds that 
would be budgeted in the 2019/2020 budgets ($44,733.97). 
 
 

Council Recommendation: 
Staff is seeking a motion from the Council approving the purchase of the new tandem axel truck and 
directing staff to order the truck and build out as specified in the attached proposal.   
 

Attachments:  Truck Proposal and Specifications 
  Public Works Capital Plan 
  

































































Capital Planning 
 
Public Works Equipment Fund 
 
City Staff has reviewed the existing capital needs of the department and determined the following represent anticipated 
expenditures over the next ten years. 
 
 

City of Independence, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Public Works Equipment Fund 403

Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 2018 to 2027
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Department
Year 

Purchased
Year to 
Replace Item Cost

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Estimated 
Amounts

Public works 2028 Hot Mix Patching Roll-off 12,000$                  -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         
Public works 2019 (5) 800 MHz Radios 15,000                    -               15,000     -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 2014 2024 Road Side Mower (Replacement) 11,000                    -               -               -               -               -               -               11,000     -               -               -               
Public works 2015 NA Road Packer -                             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 2016 2024 Tractor & Loader 100,000                  -               -               -               -               -               -               100,000   -               -               -               
Public works 2007 2020 Tandem 250,000                  -               -               250,000   -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 2014 NA Tanks for Tandem 4,422                      -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 2002 2018 Shop Sweeper 5,000                      5,000       -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 1991 NA Trailer -                             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 2012 2021 S-10 Pickup (Replace with 3/4 Ton 35,000                    -               -               -               35,000     -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 2017 2027 Lawn Mower 30,000                    -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               30,000     
Public works 2002 2032 Grader 150,000                  -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 1995 2030 Generator 50,000                    -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 2007 2032 Pay Loader 150,000                  -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Public works 2025 New Truck Single Axel 200,000                  -               -               -               -               -               -               -               200,000   -               -               
Public works 2013 2029 Single Axel 200,000                  -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

5,000$     15,000$   250,000$ 35,000$   -$             -$             111,000$ 200,000$ -$             30,000$   

 

City Staff created a cash flow analysis for the Public Works Equipment Fund for the next ten years. 
 

2018 2019 2020* 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Beginning Balance 88,595$   148,595$ 192,675$ 17,675$   42,675$   102,675$ 162,675$ 111,675$ (28,325)$  31,675$   
Revenues 60,000     59,080     75,000     60,000     60,000     60,000     60,000     60,000     60,000     60,000     
Expenditures -               15,000     250,000   35,000     -               -               111,000   200,000   -               30,000     
Ending Balance 148,595$ 192,675$ 17,675$   42,675$   102,675$ 162,675$ 111,675$ (28,325)$  31,675$   61,675$   

* Estimated $15,000 from sale of Tandem
 

 
 


	Compensation & Reclass Study Report - Independence 2018 (1).pdf
	Scoring Analysis




